
From: "Johnston, Sadhu" <Sadhu.Johnston@vancouver.ca>
To: "Direct to Mayor and Council - DL" <CCDTMACDL@vancouver.ca>
CC: "City Manager's Correspondence Group - DL" <CMCG@vancouver.ca>

"Dobrovolny, Jerry" <jerry.dobrovolny@vancouver.ca>
"LaClaire, Lon" <lon.laclaire@vancouver.ca>

Date: 3/22/2018 12:30:51 PM
Subject: Yaletown Emergency Access Update

Attachments: ENG - Memo to Mayor Council - Yaletown Emergency Access Update - March ....pdf
ENG - TDE - Yaletown Fire Access - Final Letter to Yaletown BIA (YBIA).pdf

Greetings Mayor and Council,

Please see attached memo from Jerry Dobrovolny providing an update on Yaletown Emergency Access. A brief 
summary of the memo is as follows:

· This memo provides an update on upcoming changes to the street configuration on Mainland and Hamilton 
Streets in Yaletown due to life safety issues identified by Vancouver Fire and Rescue Services (VFRS).

· In collaboration with the Yaletown BIA, staff will trial a revised design throughout 2018 – keep the angled 
parking and remove the parallel parking. The letter from our Transportation Design Branch to the Yaletown 
BIA is attached for your reference.

· The revised trial design is preferred by the Yaletown BIA because over time, more space for parking could be 
created by moving or containing the dumpsters.

· The challenge with the revised trial design is that only smaller vehicles will be able to park in the angled 
parking stalls mid-block in order to provide the 6m clearance VFRS needs to set up their equipment in the 
case of an emergency. Staff will work with the Yaletown BIA to support and encourage proper parking 
behaviour.

· To offset the loss of parking in the area, staff have also found 38 additional short-term customer parking 
spots in the area.

Should you have any questions, please contact Lon LaClaire, Director of Transportation, at lon.laclaire@vancouver.ca
or 604.873.7336.

Best,
Sadhu

Sadhu Aufochs Johnston | City Manager
City of Vancouver | 453 W 12th Avenue
Vancouver | BC V5Y 1V4
604.873.7627 | Sadhu.johnston@vancouver.ca
Twitter: sadhuajohnston 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message and any accompanying documents contain confidential information intended 
for a specific individual and purpose. This message is private and protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, 
you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying or distribution, or the taking of any action based on the contents of this 
information, is strictly prohibited.
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M E M O R A N D U M  March 22, 2018 
 
TO: Mayor and Council 
  
CC: Sadhu Johnston, City Manager 

Paul Mochrie, Deputy City Manager 
Janice MacKenzie, City Clerk 
Lynda Graves, Administration Services Manager, City Manager’s Office 
Rena Kendall-Craden, Communications Director 
Kevin Quinlan, Chief of Staff, Mayor’s Office 
Naveen Girn, Community Relations Director, Mayor’s Office 
Lon LaClaire, Director of Transportation 

  
FROM: Jerry Dobrovolny 

General Manager, Engineering Services 
  
SUBJECT: Yaletown Emergency Access Update 
  
 
This memo provides an update on upcoming changes to the street configuration on Mainland 
and Hamilton Streets in Yaletown, as well as engagement efforts with the local businesses. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2017, Vancouver Fire and Rescue Services (VFRS) identified a serious life safety issue on 
Hamilton St and Mainland St – fire trucks do not have the 4m clearance needed to access the 
street, or the 6m clearance needed to set up their equipment mid-block in the case of an 
emergency.  
 
In January 2018, staff proposed the removal of all angled parking on Hamilton St and Mainland 
St to be replaced with as much parallel parking as possible. This design would consistently 
meet VFRS requirements and leave 120 parking spaces on Mainland St and Hamilton St.  
 
Since January, staff have worked closely with the Yaletown Business Improvement Association 
(BIA) to find additional parking in the neighbourhood and explore options that will meet VFRS 
requirements. Staff also hosted an information session on February 22, 2018 where they heard 
from over 200 residents and local businesses. 
 
REVISED TRIAL DESIGN  
 
In our discussions with the Yaletown BIA, they expressed an interest in an alternate design: 
keep the angled parking and remove the parallel parking.  
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While this design would leave 117 parking spaces on Mainland St and Hamilton St, there is a 
hope that over time some of the 60 dumpsters in the area could be relocated or contained to 
make room for more parking. In addition, if successful, the design could allow for a painted 
sidewalk extension on the south side of Mainland St and Hamilton St that would create a flexible 
space for walking, public seating, or local shop displays. 
 
The challenge with this design is that only smaller vehicles could park in the angled parking 
stalls mid-block in order to provide the 6m clearance VFRS needs to set up their equipment in 
the case of an emergency. Vehicles would be required to park consistently behind a 6m 
clearance line. 
 

 
Revised trial design – keep angle parking and remove parallel parking 
 
In collaboration with the Yaletown BIA, staff will install the revised design as a trial. Throughout 
2018, staff will monitor and review parking behaviour in the area to ensure that VFRS vehicle 
requirements are met. If, after adjustments are made, there is still parking behaviour that 
encroaches on the space required by VFRS, staff will review whether to implement the parking 
configuration proposed in January 2018. 
 
The trial design is expected to be implemented in April 2018, along with 38 additional short-term 
parking spaces that staff found in the area to offset the loss of customer parking.  
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TIMELINE 
  
Phase 1: April 2018  

Ensure VFRS can consistently access Hamilton St and Mainland St and create 
additional customer parking in the neighbourhood: 

 Remove parallel parking on south side of Hamilton St and Mainland St to create a 
“No Stopping Anytime” zone  

 Add 28 short term parking spaces in EasyPark Lot #22 at 909 Mainland St 
 Add 10 new metered parking spaces on Homer St  
 Reduce speed limit to 30km/hr on Hamilton St and Mainland St  
 Add time limited “Commercial Loading” zones on angle parking side from 7am to 

1pm  
 

Phase 2: May 2018  
Introduce measures to encourage and enforce parking behaviour: 

 Paint 6m clearance line for angled parking stalls to clearly show people where it 
is legal to park and add signs to encourage parking compliance 

 Replace parking meters with pay stations 
 Increase parking enforcement (City of Vancouver) and educate and encourage 

proper parking behaviour (Yaletown BIA)  
 

Phase 3: June 2018 
Explore public realm opportunities: 

 If the trial goes well, explore ways to extend sidewalk space to create a flexible 
space for walking, public seating, or local shop displays in a way that meets 
VFRS and accessibility requirements. (Similar examples from other cities are 
shown below) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo of painted sidewalk extensions in San Francisco (left) and Seattle (right) 
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Throughout 2018, staff will monitor parking behaviour to ensure it consistently meets VFRS 
requirements. If you have any questions, concerns, or require further information, please 
contact Lon LaClaire, Director of Transportation, at lon.laclaire@vancouver.ca or 604.873.7336. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Jerry W. Dobrovolny, P.Eng., MBA 
General Manager, Engineering Services 
604.873.7331 | jerry.dobrovolny@vancouver.ca 
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